

TEACHERS' PAY POLICY

VERSION 11.0

Status	Statutory
Responsible Board/Committee/Individual	Board of Trustees
Author	CEO (with support from Advanced HR)
Target Audience	Teaching Staff
Date Policy Agreed	September 2020 – Version 1 December 2020 – Version 2 September 2021 – Version 3 October 2021 – Version 4 May 2022 – Version 5 October 2022 – Version 6 March 2023 – Version 7 October 2024 – Version 8 December 2024 – Version 9 September 2025 – Version 10 December 2025 – Version 11
Review Date	September 2026

Contents

	Page Numbe
Policy for determining Teachers' Pay/Introduction	3
Pay Reviews	3
Roles and Responsibilities	4
Equality and Diversity	5
Basic Pay Determination on Appointment	5
Classroom Teacher Posts	6
Leading Practitioner Teacher Posts	6
Unqualified Teachers	6
Leadership Posts	6
CEO posts	8
Pay Progression based on Performance	8
Leadership Teachers	9
Movement to Upper Pay Range (Applications and Evidence)	10
The Assessment	10
Processes and Procedures	11
Part-time Teachers	11
Short Notice/Supply Teachers	11
Additional Hours/Supply Cover	11
Pay Increases arising from changes to the STPCD	11
Discretionary Allowances and Payments	12
Teaching and Learning Responsibility Payments (TLRs)	12
Special Educational Needs (SEND) Allowances	12
Acting Allowances	12
Other Payments	12
Recruitment and Retention Incentives and Benefits	13
Safeguarding	13
Appeals	13
Monitoring the Impact of the Policy	13
Appendices:	
Appendix 1 – Remit for the Trust Pay Committee	14
Appendix 2 – Pay Scales for Teachers, Leaders, Unqualified Teachers and TLF	Rs 16
Appendix 3 – Setting Leadership Pay	17
Appendix 4 – Criteria for Pay Progression	19
Appendix 5 – Upper Pay Range Application Form	22
Appendix 6 – UPS Application Timescale	24
Appendix 7 – Pay Appeals Procedure	25
Appendix 8 – Suggested Pay Recommendation Template	27

Policy for Determining Teachers' Pay Introduction

This policy sets out the framework for making decisions on teachers' pay. It has been developed to comply with current legislation and the requirements of the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD), a copy of this policy will be sent to all staff and a copy of all relevant documents on pay and conditions will be made available to staff employed by the Brighter Futures Learning Partnership Trust (The Trust).

In adopting this Pay Policy the aim is to:

- Ensure that decisions are evidence-based in every case
- Assure the quality of teaching and learning across the Trust is of the highest quality
- Ensure that staff progression and reward is evident throughout the Trust
- Develop, recruit and retain highly motivated and highly performing teachers
- Support recruitment and retention and reward teachers appropriately
- Ensure accountability, transparency, objectivity and equality of opportunity.

Pay decisions in this Trust are made by **the Trust Board** which has delegated certain responsibilities to the CEO, Headteachers/Principal and Local Governing Boards as set out in the Trust Scheme of Delegation. The **Remuneration Committee** shall be responsible for the establishment and review of the pay policy, subject to the approval of the Academy Trust Board, and shall have full authority to take pay decisions on behalf of the Academy Trust Board in accordance with this policy.

The CEO's pay will be reviewed annually. The Board of Trustees may review the CEO's salary scale at any time during the year if there is a significant increase in the depth and breadth of the role. The Board of Trustees has appointed two members of the Board to carry out the performance review of the CEO with a qualified external adviser. When setting the CEO's pay scale, the Board will take into account the pay differentials within the organisation and the gap between that of school Headteachers/Principals as well as that of the average teacher salary. The Board will ensure that the rationale behind any pay decisions reflect the challenge of the role, including the financial and educational performance of the Trust.

The CEO will make recommendations for Headteachers/Principal pay in consultation with the Local Governing Body. The Headteachers/Principal in consultation with their Local Governing Body will make evidence-based pay recommendations to the CEO who will moderate all decisions. **The Trust Board will review all pay recommendations and are responsible for all pay decisions.**

Pay Reviews

The Trust Board will ensure that each teacher's salary is reviewed annually with effect from 1 September and that each teacher is notified of the outcome by no later than 30 November each year, and that all teachers are given a written statement setting out their salary and any other financial benefits to which they are entitled.

Reviews may take place at other times of the year to reflect any changes in circumstances or job description that lead to a change in the basis for calculating an individual's pay. A written statement

will be given after any review and where applicable will give information about the basis on which it was made.

Where a pay determination leads or may lead to the start of a period of safeguarding, employees will be given the required notification as soon as possible and no later than one month after the date of the determination.

Roles and Responsibilities

The **Board of Trustees** is responsible for ensuring that the Trust adheres to the principles of public life established by the Nolan Committee (objectivity, openness and accountability), alongside legal and statutory requirements. The Board of Trustees will also ensure that pay decisions and reviews follow the correct processes (e.g. local pay frameworks and associated documentation, policies and procedures) and that due regard is given to national frameworks. The Trust Board will ensure that the criteria and payment of additional responsibility awards are consistent across the Trust and that all staffing structures are affordable and within budget.

Any Trustee with a direct or indirect pecuniary interest will be asked to withdraw when pay and/or performance appraisals are being discussed (unless the Board of Trustees determines otherwise) and must not, in any case, participate in such discussions or vote on any such issue.

The **CEO**, and **Headteachers/Principal** will ensure that appointments and pay decisions sit within their delegated powers and adhere to Trust policies and procedures. Pay decisions and progression based on performance at each school/UTC will be made by the Headteacher/Principal in consultation with the CEO. Each pay decision must be supported by evidence of a successful appraisal. The Multi-Academy Trust (MAT Remuneration Committee) – Please see Appendix 1 will hold oversight of pay for each school and shall review and advise the Board on pay policy and annual progression. (Refer to the Trust Scheme of Delegation)

The Trust will take into consideration any recommendations made to schools by the School Teachers' Review Body. Recommendations of National uplifts to Teachers Pay will, however, only be awarded if they are affordable. Reserves will only be used in exceptional circumstances to support pay decisions – please refer to the BFLPT Reserves Policy.

All pay decisions must follow the following principles:

Each school will work with the CEO to determine the necessity and viability of its own staffing structure in relation to teaching, leadership roles, lead practitioners and TLRs. These will be determined in line with requirements across the Trust and in line with budgets available. Leadership and Teaching roles across the Trust will be developed with support from the CEO working in consultation with Headteachers/Principal.

The **Local Governing Body** in each school will be asked to **review** the performance of related pay decisions for teaching staff within their respective schools prior to pay decisions being **approved** by the Trust Board. Each school/UTC has a Governor (usually the Chair), who oversees this process with the Headteacher/Principal.

The **CEO** with support from **HR** is responsible for overseeing the development, review, implementation, communication, monitoring and evaluation of this policy and associated policies and procedures and will report to the Board of Trustees as required. **The CEO** and **Headteachers/Principal** must ensure that the Pay Policy is implemented fairly and consistently.

The **CEO** will attend the Trust Remuneration Committee meetings, but they must withdraw when his/her own pay is being considered or discussed. The CEO is responsible for advising the Trust on all matters related to the implementation of this policy.

The **CEO** with Headteachers/Principal and Central HR will monitor pay across the organisation and will report to the Board of Trustees on an annual basis, completing national pay reports as required.

The **CFO**, **Office/HR Managers** are responsible for distributing the annual salary statements normally by 30 November annually.

Managers must ensure that they adhere to the policies and procedures of the Trust and the associated pay and performance frameworks.

Staff are expected to familiarise themselves with the Trust's policies and procedures and they must engage in the relevant appraisal process.

Equality and Diversity

The Trust is committed to the principles of equality. All pay related decisions will be determined fairly and consistently and will be free from bias and discrimination. These decisions will be made in compliance with the Race Relations, Sex Discrimination, Equal Pay, Disability Discriminations Acts, Employment Relations Acts of 1996, 1999 and 2002, as well as the Part-Time Workers' Regulations and Fixed Term Employees' Regulations. Procedures for determining pay will be consistent with the principles of public life- objectivity, openness and accountability.

Basic Pay Determination on Appointment

The Headteacher/Principal in conjunction with the CEO will determine the pay range for a vacancy prior to advertising it. The Trust Board will continue to use the main pay scale and the upper pay scale as reference points only for pay.

The Trust Board undertakes that it will not restrict the pay range advertised for, other than for the minimum of the pay scale.

On appointment the starting salary will be determined by taking a range of factors into account, including:

- The nature of the post
- The level of qualifications, skills and experience required
- Market conditions
- The needs of the school
- The school staffing profile
- The School Improvement Plan

Where a candidate is on the main pay scale offer, the Trust will at least match their existing salary. Where a candidate is on the Upper pay scale the school will make an offer to the individual based on their performance and information from the interview process.

Where a candidate has had three or more consecutive years away from the profession of teaching the Trust will offer a salary based on the knowledge, skills and performance at interview.

Any starting salary above the candidate's existing salary must be discussed and agreed with the CEO, prior to appointment.

Classroom Teacher Posts

The Trust Board has established that it will continue to use the main pay scale and the upper pay scale and unqualified pay scale as reference points only for pay.

The Trust Board undertakes that it will not restrict the pay range advertised for or starting salary and pay progression prospects available for classroom teacher posts, other than the minimum of the Main Pay Range and the maximum of the Upper Pay Range. In this Trust there are 6 points on the Main Pay Scale – M1, M2, M3, M4, M5, M6 - and 5 points on the Upper Pay Range –UPS1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. Please see Appendix 2.

Leading Practitioner Teacher Posts

In the event of appointing a leading practitioner pay a salary within the minimum and maximum in line with the STPCD

Such posts may be established for teachers whose primary purpose is the modelling and leading improvement of teaching skills, where those duties fall outside the criteria for the TLR payment structure.

When determining the pay scales for such posts, the Headteacher/Principal with support from the Central HR Team will do this by reference to the weight of the responsibilities of the post and bearing in mind the need to ensure pay equality where posts are equally onerous and fair pay relativities between posts of differing levels of responsibility.

Any new Leading Practitioner Teacher will start at the bottom point of the pay range.

The Trust will establish such posts from 1 September 2013 for all teachers previously employed in the school as Advanced Skills Teachers or Excellent Teachers and will pay them at a scale point in line with the salary range for advanced skills teachers.

Unqualified Teachers

Trust Board has established the following pay scale for unqualified teachers employed in classroom teacher posts - Please see Appendix 2.

Leadership Teacher Posts (Executive Headteachers/Principals, Headteachers/Principals, Deputy, Assistant Headteachers/Principals, Subject Directors, Extended Leadership Posts)

The pay ranges for Executive Headteachers/Principals, Headteachers/Principals, Deputy Headteachers/Principals, Assistant Headteachers/Principals, Subject Directors, Extended Leaders will be determined in accordance with the criteria specified in the STPCD and ensuring fair pay relativities. The determination of leadership group pay introduced in 2014 will be applied to individuals appointed to a leadership post on or after 1 September 2014, or whose responsibilities have significantly changed on or after that date. The Trust may choose to review the pay of all of their leadership posts in accordance with the arrangements introduced in the 2014 document if they determine that this is required to maintain consistency either with pay arrangements for new appointments to the leadership group made on or after 1 September 2014. See Appendix 3 for the determination of Head teacher, deputy and assistant head teacher pay.

Where a Headteacher temporarily becomes responsible for more than one school consideration will be given to the pay of deputy and assistant heads. An increase in pay will only be agreed where the

post accrues additional extra responsibilities as a result of the Headteacher's enlarged role. It should not be assumed that an increase to the deputy and assistant heads pay is a requirement in all cases.

The employer may:

- Temporarily alter the pay point within the existing pay range
- Temporarily increase the pay range
- Consider the use of additional payments

Where the arrangement for the Headteacher is temporary, any adjustment to their pay and that of other teachers is also temporary and safeguarding provisions will not apply when the arrangements cease.

Determination of temporary payments to the Executive Headteacher/Principals, Headteacher/Principal will be determined by the Trust Board for clearly temporary responsibilities or duties that are in addition to the post for which their salary has been determined. The total sum of the temporary payments made to a Headteacher/Principal in accordance with the STPCD in any school year must not exceed 25% of the annual salary which is otherwise payable to the Headteacher/Principal and the total sum of salary and other payments made to a Headteacher/Principal must not exceed 25% above the maximum of the Headteacher/Principal group.

The Trust will normally appoint new leadership teachers at the bottom point of the relevant pay range, however, the CEO in consultation with the Headteacher/Principal can use his/her discretion to appoint based on the process set out - Please see Appendix 3.

The Trust will pay teachers as Deputy or Assistant Headteachers/Principals only where the Trust is satisfied that, in the context of the teacher's duties, the role includes a significant responsibility that is not required of all classroom teachers or TLR holders, and that the role –

- is focused on teaching and learning;
- requires the exercise of a teacher's professional skills and judgement;
- requires the teacher to lead and manage the school/UTC through:
 - development of teaching and learning priorities across the school/UTC;
 - accountability for the standards of achievement and behaviour of pupils/students across the school/UTC;
 - accountability for the planning and deployment of the school's/UTC's resources;
 - ➤ leading policy development and implementation across the school/UTC in accordance with statutory provisions;
 - managing whole school/UTC operational activity;
 - working with external bodies and agencies; and
 - securing pupils'/students' access to their educational entitlements;
- has an impact on the educational progress of the school's/UTC's pupils/students;
- involves leading, developing and enhancing the teaching practice of the school's/UTC's staff;
 and
- includes line management responsibility for a significant number of people and/or the line management of other line managers.
- In the case of a Deputy Headteacher/Principal post, the Trust must also be satisfied that this significant responsibility features a job weight which exceeds that expected of an Assistant Head teacher/Principal employed in the same school, including responsibility for discharging

in full the responsibilities of the Headteacher/Principal in the absence of the Headteacher/Principal.

CEO Posts

The determination of CEO pay in education is guided by the Academy Trust Handbook and the Department for Education (DfE) guidance. Key factors include:

- Evidence-based process: The board of trustees must ensure that executive pay decisions follow a robust evidence-based process and are a reasonable and defensible reflection of the individual's role and responsibilities.
- Transparency and proportionality: The board must discharge its responsibilities effectively, ensuring its approach to, and levels of, pay and benefits are transparent, proportionate and defensible.
- Board approval: All final decisions on executive pay must be formally approved by the full board of trustees.
- Benchmarking: The pay setting arrangements should offer a transparent and rational way for calculating pay, with clear financial parameters within which the pay range or spot salary should be set.

Pay Progression Based on Performance

The arrangements for teacher appraisal are set out in the Trust's Teachers' Appraisal policy. The focus of appraisal is to enhance, support and develop teachers to enable them to meet their objectives. A written pay decision is required for every teacher based on the recommendations made by the Headteacher/Principal. Pay progression will be awarded on all occasions other than when there are reasons related to poor performance.

Decisions regarding pay progression will be made with reference to the teachers' appraisal reports and the criteria as determined by the school/UTC and set out – Please see Appendix 4. In the case of Early Career Teachers, pay decisions will be made by means of the statutory induction process and the pay committee must ensure that ECT's are not negatively affected by the extended induction period, therefore ECT's must be considered for pay progression. It will be possible for a 'no progression' determination to be made without recourse to the capability procedure.

The Trust is committed to ensuring that decisions relating to pay will be fair and transparent, assessments of performance will be properly rooted in evidence. Fairness will be assured by annual monitoring of the application of the pay policy and pay decisions

A range of evidence will be used including and giving priority to the appraisal process.

Where teachers have joined the school part way through an appraisal cycle, the Trust will, where necessary, seek evidence from the previous school to assist pay decisions and will seek evidence from the teachers themselves.

Employees who are on maternity/adoption/paternity/shared parental leave at any point during the annual cycle of appraisal and pay decisions will have a review meeting with their appraiser to set objectives. A range of evidence from the previous cycle and the return-to-work period will be used to inform pay decisions in line with the criteria determined by the school. Schools are reminded that employees on maternity/adoption/paternity & SPL leave must have their performance assessed and be included in any pay recommendations. In consultation with employees a suitable time will be scheduled to assess their performance.

Teachers' appraisal reports will contain pay recommendations. Final decisions about whether or not, to accept a pay recommendation, will be made by the Headteacher/Principal based on the evidence provided, having regard to the appraisal report and the criteria as outlined in the pay policy, taking into account advice from the senior leadership team. All decisions will be moderated by the CEO and discussed with the Chair of the Local Governing Body before final recommendations are made to the Trust Remuneration Committee.

The Trust will work with each school's/UTC's Local Governing Body to ensure that appropriate funding is allocated for pay progression for all eligible teachers.

All teachers can expect progression to the top of their pay range as a result of successfully meeting the criteria for progression as defined in this policy. The Trust promotes and encourages outstanding performance in its teachers, therefore, teachers who can demonstrate consistent and sustained outstanding performance will have access to accelerated progression as set out – Please see Appendix 4.

The Trust will make pay decisions according to the criteria for progression set out - Please see Appendix 4. Annual performance related pay awards will be backdated to the 1st September in the current academic year.

Teachers in this Trust are strongly encouraged to maintain their own evidence file of CPD, However teachers will not be expected to collect evidence which is readily available to the leadership team in the school. This will include data for classes, outcomes from lesson observations etc.

Leadership teachers (Headteachers/Principals, Deputy, Assistant Headteachers/Principals, Subject Directors and Extended Leadership)

The Headteacher/Principal, Deputy Headteacher(s)/Principals and Assistant/ Headteacher(s) /Principals, Subject Directors/Extended Leadership will be awarded additional scale points in accordance with the provisions of the STPCD i.e. they must demonstrate sustained high quality of performance in respect of school leadership and management and pupil progress. Pay decision will be clearly attributable to the performance of the individual. Please see Appendix for setting Leadership Pay).

Headteacher

In agreeing movement up the pay scale, the pay committee will consider whether the Headteacher has demonstrated sustained high quality of performance, having regard to the results of the most recent appraisal carried out.

Pay progression will normally be by one point in the course of one school year, but movement by two points may be considered where performance is assessed as exceptional.

In making a determination on pay progression the Remuneration Committee will apply the criteria contained within Appendix 3

Movement to the Upper Pay Range (Expert Teacher)

Applications and Evidence

Any qualified teacher may apply to be paid on the Upper Pay Range and any such application must be assessed in line with this policy. It is the responsibility of the teacher to decide, whether or not, they wish to apply to be paid on the Upper Pay Range.

Applications may be made once a year. Where teachers wish to be assessed, they should notify their appraiser and Headteacher/Principal in writing using the application form — Please see Appendix 5. The appraiser will discuss the evidence at the appraisal planning meeting. The teacher's application will be appended to their appraisal planning statement. This submission must be at the start of the academic year, this is so that the Headteacher can work with the teacher to provide the experience and allow them to gather the evidence. At the end of the academic year the Headteacher will take the application and the evidence provided by the teacher to the pay committee. See Appendix 3 for the criteria for UPS and the timescale for submission.

If a teacher is simultaneously employed at another school(s)/UTC outside of the Trust, they may submit separate applications if they wish to apply to be paid on the Upper Pay Range in that school or schools. This Trust will not be bound by any pay decisions made by another school.

If a teacher works across more than one school in the Trust, the Headteachers/Principals will ensure that the teacher will only need to submit one application. This will be agreed at the beginning of each school year.

The UPS application timescale is set out in Appendix 6.

The Assessment

An application from a qualified teacher will be successful where the Trust is satisfied that:

- (a) the teacher is highly competent in all elements of the relevant standards; and
- (b) the teacher's achievements and contribution to the school are substantial and sustained.

In this Trust <u>highly competent</u> means:

- Performance is not only good, but it is also good enough to provide coaching and mentoring to other teachers including leading staff meetings/developing and writing policies, etc.
- Giving other teachers advice and demonstrating effective teaching practice impacting on raising standards and pupil/student outcomes
- Makes a clear, wider contribution to the work of the school in addition to their highquality work in the classroom

Substantial means:

- Consistently plays a critical role in the life of the school and in the Trust
- Provides a role model for teaching and learning and in their personal and professional responsibilities
- Makes distinctive contribution to the raising of pupil/student standards
- Takes advantage of appropriate opportunities for professional development, including evidence-based practice and use the outcomes effectively to improve pupils'/students' learning

Sustained means:

High level performance sustained over at least 2 school years (the most recent)

In making its decision, the Trust will have regard to the two most recent appraisal reviews and additional evidence to demonstrate the above criteria. Reviews will be deemed to be successful if the teacher demonstrates that they meet all of the above criteria and can demonstrate performance that is **highly competent**, **substantial and sustained**.

Processes and Procedures

The assessment will be made in line with the timescales of the Trust Remuneration Committee. If successful, applicants will move to the Upper Pay Range from the previous 1 September and will be placed on point 1 of that pay scale. If unsuccessful, feedback will be provided by the Headteacher/Principal as soon as possible and at least within 5 working days of the decision; and will cover the reasons for the decision and the appeals arrangements available to the teacher. Any appeal against a decision not to move the teacher to the Upper Pay Range will be heard under the Trust's appeals arrangements.

Part-time Teachers

Teachers employed on an ongoing basis at the school but who work less than a full working week are deemed to be part-time. The Trust will give them a written statement detailing their working time obligations and the standard mechanism used to determine their pay, subject to the provisions of the statutory pay and working time arrangements and by comparison with the school's timetabled teaching week for a full-time teacher in an equivalent post. Any additional hours worked by agreement from time to time will be paid at the same rate.

(Except for **some** TLRs, the salary and any allowances of a part-time teacher must be determined in accordance with the pro rata principle).

Short Notice/Supply Teachers

Teachers employed on a day-to-day or other short notice basis will be paid on a daily basis calculated on the assumption that a full working year consists of 195 days; periods of employment for less than a day being calculated pro-rata.

Teachers who are employed to teach for the full student/pupil day will be paid at a daily rate of 1/195th of the annual pay they would receive if engaged on a regular contract. Teachers who work less than a full day will be hourly paid and will also have their salary calculated as an annual amount which will then be divided by 195 then divided again by the proportion of the full pupil day which they teach to arrive at the hourly rate.

Additional Hours/Supply Cover

For any additional hours/supply cover worked beyond the normal substantive role e.g. summer school provision, all teachers will normally be paid on a flat hourly rate equivalent to spine point M6.

Pay Increases Arising from Changes to the STPCD

The Trust is committed to awarding the pay uplift resulting from national pay awards (as outlined in the STPCD) to all existing pay points and allowances for all teachers where indicated. Where the STPCD states that the Trust must determine how to apply uplifts, the Trust's Remuneration Committee will make the decision taking account of recommendations, the guidance in the STPCD, and availability of funding.

Discretionary Allowances and Payments

Teaching and Learning Responsibility Payments (TLRs)

The Trust, where appropriate, pays TLR 1 and 2 payments to teachers in line with the STPCD as updated.

The criteria for the award of TLR 1 and 2 payments are as follows:

Before awarding any TLR 1 or 2 payment, the Trust must be satisfied that the teacher's duties include a significant responsibility that is not required of all classroom teachers and that:

- a. it is focused on teaching and learning;
- b. requires the exercise of a teacher's professional skills and judgement;
- c. requires the teacher to lead, manage and develop a subject or curriculum area; or to lead and manage pupil/student development across the curriculum;
- d. has an impact on the educational progress of pupils/students other than the teacher's assigned classes or groups of pupils/students; and
- e. involves leading, developing and enhancing the teaching practice of other staff.

In addition, before awarding a TLR1 payment, the Trust must be satisfied that the significant responsibility referred to above includes line management responsibility for a significant number of people.

The Trust may award a fixed term third TLR (TLR3) to a classroom teacher for clearly time-limited school improvements projects, or one off externally driven responsibilities. The annual value of a TLR3 will be no less and no greater than specified in the STPCD. The duration of the fixed term must be established at the outset and payment should be made on a monthly basis for the duration of the fixed term. Where a TLR3 is awarded to a part-time teacher, the pro-rata principle does not apply.

Please see Appendix 2.

Special educational needs (SEND) allowances

The Trust will award SEND allowances in accordance with the criteria and provisions set out in the STPCD.

The value of SEND allowances will be no less and no more than the amounts set out in the STPCD.

Acting allowances

Where any teacher is required to act as Headteacher/Principal, Deputy Headteacher/Principal or Assistant Headteacher/Principal or any other defined leadership post for a period in excess of four weeks, s/he will receive an additional allowance in order that the total pay received is equal to that of the substantive post holder.

Payments will be backdated to the day on which the teacher assumed those duties. No pressure, direct or indirect, will be placed on teachers to act up where such acting up is voluntary on their part.

Other Payments

Continuing professional development; Initial teacher training activities; and Out-of-school learning activities outside of directed time

The Trust may make additional payments to teachers (including the Headteacher/Principal) who agree to undertake such activities. Additional payments will be calculated at a daily or hourly rate with reference to each teacher's actual pay spine position or, where appropriate and following consideration by the Remuneration Committee, at a higher level reflecting the responsibility and size of commitment. Payment will only be considered where the activities involve a substantial and ongoing commitment and, in particular, where this involved working with pupils/students or others at weekends or **extended periods** during school holidays. Payment will not be paid for leading or taking school trips.

Recruitment and retention incentives and benefits

Where the Trust wishes to make recruitment and retention payments to teachers, the level, duration and criteria for such payments will be set out clearly in the documents associated with the decision made by the relevant committee. The CEO will be consulted on all occasions before making any offer. Such payments will be determined by the availability of budget and reviewed annually.

Headteachers/Principals, Deputy Headteachers/Principals and Assistant Headteachers/Principals, Senior Leaders may not be awarded payments relating to recruitment or retention incentives, other than as reimbursement of reasonable incurred housing or relocation costs. All other recruitment and retention considerations in relation to a Headteacher/Principal, Deputy Headteacher/Principal or Assistant Headteacher/Principal, Senior Leader including non-monetary benefits must be taken into account when determining the pay range.

Safeguarding

The Trust will operate salary safeguarding arrangements in line with the provisions of the STPCD.

Appeals

The arrangements for considering appeals on pay determination are set out in Appendix 7.

Monitoring the Impact of this Policy

The Brighter Futures Learning Partnership Trust Remuneration Committee will monitor the outcomes and impact of this policy on an annual basis, reporting all pay decisions into the Trust Board.

Teachers' Pay Policy Version 11 – Agreed by Trust Board December 2025

APPENDIX 1

REMIT FOR THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE BRIGHTER FUTURES LEARNING PARTNERSHIP TRUST

The Remuneration Committee will comprise of at least three Trustees appointed by the Board. The CEO is part of this committee but will leave the meeting at any time when his/her pay is being discussed.

Establishment of the policy

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

- establishing the policy, in consultation with the CEO, HR Consultants, Local Governing Boards, Headteachers/Principals, and staff, submitting it to the Trust Board for approval
- recruiting, appointing and setting the remuneration of the CEO and Executive Team of the Trust
- holding oversight of the pay and terms and conditions of service of all employees in the Trust
- reviewing and recommending to the Board any significant changes to staffing structure within the Trust, Academies and UTC
- approving the pay for all employees based on the recommendations from the CEO, CFO, Headteachers/Principals.
- setting of the remuneration for the Executive Team based on performance and benchmarked against other similar Trusts in the sector
- approving the business plan for any significant restructures that are likely to involve redundancies either voluntary or statutory and associated costs based on the recommendations of the CEO, CFO, Local Governing Board as per the Scheme of Delegation.

The **Trust Board** is responsible for:

Formal approval of the policy and for all decisions made by the Remuneration Committee.

Monitoring and review of the policy

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

• reviewing the policy annually and submitting it to the Academy Trust Board for approval.

The Academy Trust Board is responsible for:

• considering an annual report, including statistical information, on decisions taken in accordance with the terms of the policy;

Application of the policy

The CEO is responsible for:

- ensuring that pay recommendations for the Headteachers/Principals, Deputy and Assistant Head
 teachers/Principals, leadership team, classroom teachers and support staff are made and submitted
 to the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the terms of the policy;
- advising the Remuneration Committee on its decisions ensuring all pay recommendations are evidence-based; and
- ensuring that staff are informed of the outcome of decisions of the Remuneration Committee and of the right of appeal.

The Appeals Committee of the Trust Board is responsible for:

•	taking decisions on appeals against the decisions of the Remuneration Committee in accordance with
	the terms of the appeals procedure of the policy.

Main Pay Scale				
Grade	2024/25	2025/26	Increase	
M1	31,650	32,916	4.0%	
M2	33,483	34,823	4.0%	
M3	35,674	37,101	4.0%	
M4	38,034	39,556	4.0%	
M5	40,439	42,057	4.0%	
M6	43,607	45,352	4.0%	

Upper Pay Scale					
Grade	2024/25	2025/26	Increase		
UPS1	45,646	47,472	4.0%		
UPS2	46,490	48,350	4.0%		
UPS3	47,338	49,232	4.0%		
UPS4	48,209	50,137	4.0%		
UPS5	49,084	51,048	4.0%		

Unqualified Teachers					
Grade	Grade 2024/25 2025/26				
1	21,731	22,601	4.0%		
2	24,224	25,193	4.0%		
3	26,716	27,785	4.0%		
4	28,914	30,071	4.0%		
5	31,410	32,667	4.0%		
6	33,902	35,259	4.0%		

Teachi	ng & Learning	Responsibilit	ies			
TLR	2024/25	2025/26	Increase			
TLR1						
Min	9,782	10,174	4.0%			
Max	16,553	17,216	4.0%			
TLR2						
Min	3,391	3,527	4.0%			
Max	8,279	8,611	4.0%			
TLR3	TLR3					
Min	675	702	4.0%			
Max	3,344	3,478	4.0%			

Special Educational Needs Allowances					
SEN	2024/25	2025/26	Increase		
Min	2,679	2,786	4.0%		
Max	5,285	5,496	4.0%		

Leadership				
Grade	2024/25	2025/26	Increase	
L1	49,781	51,773	4.0%	
L2	51,027	53,069	4.0%	
L3	52,301	54,394	4.0%	
L4	53,602	55,747	4.0%	
L5	54,939	57,137	4.0%	
L6	56,316	58,569	4.0%	
L7	57,831	60,145	4.0%	
L8	59,167	61,534	4.0%	
L9	60,644	63,070	4.0%	
L10	62,202	64,691	4.0%	
L11	63,815	66,368	4.0%	
L12	65,286	67,898	4.0%	
L13	66,919	69,596	4.0%	
L14	68,586	71,330	4.0%	
L15	70,293	73,105	4.0%	
L16	72,162	75,049	4.0%	
L17	73,819	76,772	4.0%	
L18	75,675	78,702	4.0%	
L19	77,552	80,655	4.0%	
L20	79,475	82,654	4.0%	
L21	81,441	84,699	4.0%	
L22	83,464	86,803	4.0%	
L23	85,529	88,951	4.0%	
L24	87,651	91,158	4.0%	
L25	89,830	93,424	4.0%	
L26	92,052	95,735	4.0%	
L27	94,332	98,106	4.0%	
L28	96,673	100,540	4.0%	
L29	99,067	103,030	4.0%	
L30	101,533	105,595	4.0%	
L31	104,040	108,202	4.0%	
L32	106,626	110,892	4.0%	
L33	109,275	113,646	4.0%	
L34	111,976	116,456	4.0%	
L35	114,759	119,350	4.0%	
L36	117,601	122,306	4.0%	
L37	120,524	125,345	4.0%	
L38	123,506	128,447	4.0%	
L39	126,517	131,578	4.0%	
L40	129,673	134,860	4.0%	
L41	132,913	138,230	4.0%	
L42	136,243	141,693	4.0%	
L43	138,265	143,796	4.0%	

	Headteachers						
Group	Range	Salary	Range	Salary	Range	Increase	
		2024	4/25	202	5/26		
1	L6 - L18	56,316	74,926	58,569	77,924	4.0%	
2	L8 - L21	59,167	80,634	61,534	83,860	4.0%	
3	L11 - L24	63,815	86,783	66,368	90,255	4.0%	
4	L14 - L27	68,586	93,400	71,330	97,136	4.0%	
5	L18 - L31	75,675	103,010	78,702	107,131	4.0%	
6	L21 - L35	81,441	113,624	84,699	118,169	4.0%	
7	L24 - L39	87,651	125,263	91,158	130,274	4.0%	
8	L28 - L43	96,673	138,265	100,540	143,796	4.0%	

Lead Practitioners					
Grade	2024/25	2025/26	Increase		
1	50,025	52,026	4.0%		
2	51,280	53,332	4.0%		
3	52,560	54,663	4.0%		
4	53,867	56,022	4.0%		
5	55,209	57,418	4.0%		
6	56,593	58,857	4.0%		
7	58,118	60,443	4.0%		
8	59,457	61,836	4.0%		
9	60,943	63,381	4.0%		
10	62,509	65,010	4.0%		
11	64,129	66,695	4.0%		
12	65,608	68,233	4.0%		
13	67,247	69,937	4.0%		
14	68,925	71,682	4.0%		
15	70,639	73,465	4.0%		
16	72,518	75,419	4.0%		
17	74,182	77,150	4.0%		
18	76,050	79,092	4.0%		

APPENDIX 3

Setting Leadership Pay - 3 stage Process

- 1. Defining the role and determining the Headteacher/Principal group
- 2. Setting the indicative pay range
- 3. Deciding the starting salary and the individual pay range

Step 1 Calculating the ISR (Individual School Range)

Key Stage	Units Per Pupil
For each pupil in the preliminary stage and each pupil in the first or second key stage	7
For each pupil in the third Key Stage	9
For each pupil in the fourth Key Stage	11
For each pupil in the fifth Key Stage	13

- Each pupil with a statement of Educational needs (SEN) or from Sep 2014 an Education, Health and Care plan must be counted as three points more than the pupil would otherwise be counted
- Each pupil who attends for no more than half a day on each day for which the pupil attends school must be counted as half as many units as the pupil would otherwise be counted.
- The steps for calculating the ISR are set out in the STPCD. Special schools undertake a different calculation.
- Calculation of the ISR is dependent upon pupil numbers, this will determine the Headteachers'/Principals' group, the table below shows the group dependent upon the unit scores.

Total Unit Score	Headteacher Group
Up to 1000	1
1,001 to 2,200	2
2,201 to 3,500	3
3,501 to 5,000	4
5,001 to 7,500	5
7,501 to 11,000	6
11,001 to 17,000	7
17,001 and over	8

Step 2. Setting the indicative Pay Range

Headteachers/Principals normally have a 7-point range with Deputies and Assistant Headteachers/Principal on a 5-point range.

In establishing the range and the starting point consideration may be given to the points below

- Consider the complexity and the challenge of the role
- Any additional payments such as recruitment and retention, permanent additional responsibilities (such as the provision of Initial Teacher Training, long term provision to other schools) should be considered at this stage.

Consider whether the range should start at the minimum of the group or at a higher level.

Other Considerations:

- The context and challenge arising from pupil needs
- High degree of complexity and challenge, i.e. accountability for multiple schools or managing across several dispersed sites
- Additional accountability not reflected in stage 1
- Factors that may impede the school's ability to attract a field of appropriately qualified and experienced leadership candidates, i.e. location
- The current grading of the school and the challenges facing the school.

Step 3. Deciding the starting salary and whether the range needs to be extended

Where necessary and in exceptional circumstances the range may be extended. This should be not more than 25% of the top of the group.

APPENDIX 4

CRITERIA FOR PAY PROGRESSION

1. Quality of Education

Pupil attainment measures will be used in the context of the quality of education. The data will form part of a wider judgement based on Progress Over Time. This will include a range of evidence, including lesson observation outcomes, the quality of work in pupils' books relative to their attainment. A further range of evidence for each year phase is set out below.

For teachers in KS1 and KS2 pupil progress measures will relate to reading, writing and mathematics.

For teachers in F1 pupil progress measures will relate to the prime areas:

- Personal, social and emotional development
- Communication and language
- Physical development

For teachers in F2 pupil progress measures will relate to the prime area of

- Communication and language
- Literacy
- Mathematics

For teachers in a secondary setting, pupil progress measures will relate to GCSE's and A levels. Key Stage 3 data and assessment will be used if teachers do not have GCSE or A level classes.

2. Teacher Categories

This policy sets out the 3 categories of teachers in their careers.

a) Early Career Teachers

Teachers in the early stages of their career deserve high quality support and guidance, the trust recognises that teachers at this stage of their career are on a steep learning curve and that knowledge and practice is still developing. Early Career teachers are those teachers who are currently being paid MPS1 to MPS 2

b) Accomplished/Main Pay Scale Teachers

Accomplished teachers are those who have developed their style of teaching and practice and have built on their skills, knowledge and professionalism. Accomplished teachers are those teachers who are currently being paid MPS3 to MPS6

c) Upper Pay Range Teachers

Established teachers are those teachers who have experienced leading initiatives across the school, are knowledgeable enough to mentor early career teachers and have developed their practice towards expertise in areas of teaching and learning. Established teachers are those teachers who are currently being paid UPS1 to UPS5

3. No Progression Criteria

Following an individual teacher's annual appraisal and, subject to the provision of the published pay policy, they should expect to receive annual pay progression within the maximum of their pay range, subject to successful performance as defined in the school pay policy. Progression will not be withheld for reasons other than performance.

In all pay bands, where a teacher has not met their objectives and does not meet the teacher standards, pay progression will be withheld due to reasons related to poor performance. It will be expected that at the mid-term review, informal or formal support is identified as defined in the Trust Capability Policy to address any performance concerns. If the objectives and standards have still not been met at the final performance review meeting, no progression will be awarded.

4. Leadership

Sustained high quality consistent performance with objectives fully met.

Criteria for Appraisal:

At the mid-term review point, objective targets should be at least partially met with the appraiser and appraisee both confident that all objective targets will be fully met by the end of year review. If there are any concerns with performance e.g. teaching and learning, planning and development, pupil progress data, this should be highlighted immediately and referred to the line manager and the Headteacher/Principal. Concerns relating to the performance of the Headteacher would be dealt with by the CEO and the Chair of the Local Governing Board. Where there are concerns about a teacher's work performance at any point throughout the appraisal process, teachers should receive informal, focused support. When there is unsatisfactory progress made following informal support mechanisms, the teacher will then enter the capability process.

Note: Objective targets must be met in full, and supported by appropriate evidence, for the award of a one-point pay progression. Where objectives have not been fully achieved, the Headteacher/Trust may consider whether partial achievement should be recognised, where there is clear evidence that contextual factors have had a demonstrable impact on performance. Any such determination will be made strictly in accordance with the formal procedures set out below.

5. Teacher Categories

	CRITERIA	CRITERIA
Early Career Teachers (MPS1 to MPS2)	The quality of education is good overall drawing on a range of evidence including first hand evidence of how pupils are doing (interviews, observations, work scrutinies and documentary reviews).	
Overall assessment of Good	See Ofsted grade descriptors for Quality of Education and sources of evidence specific to curriculum implementation and impact	Objectives met
performance One point progression	Takes responsibility for professional development, including taking advice from more experienced colleagues, to improve practice.	
	CRITERIA	CRITERIA
Accomplished/ Main Pay Scale Teachers (MPS 3 to MPS6)	• The quality of education is securely good, drawing on a range of evidence including first-hand evidence of how pupils are doing (interviews, observations, work scrutinies and documentary reviews).	
Overall		
Assessment of Good or better performance	See Ofsted grade descriptors for Quality of Education and sources of evidence specific to curriculum implementation and impact. Takes responsibility for professional development, including acting on advice and supporting others, to further improve practice.	Objectives met

Pay Progression based on Performance

- In pay bands Early Career and Accomplished/Main Pay Scale, teachers will be awarded the following pay award providing they meet the necessary criteria:
 - Overall assessment of consistently good performance will equate to one point progression.
- The Trust's expectation is that all staff aspire to achieve one full point and continue to improve and sustain high-quality educational provision.
- 3 Teachers must fulfil the full criteria before they are awarded the progression. In categories teachers must also meet the Teachers standards in their entirety as these are the minimum standards expected of teachers.
- 4 UPS teachers will be eligible for a performance related pay recommendation on an annual basis upon successful performance reviews.

APPENDIX 5

UPPER PAY RANGE APPLICATION FORM

Teacher's Details:	
Name	
Post	
Appraisal Details:	
Years covered by planning/review statements	
Schools/UTC covered by planning/review statements	
Self- Evaluation – How I meet Threshold standards with asse	ociated evidence or evidence sources.
Teachers are responsible for providing the relevant evidence	ce. This can be electronic.
An index should be provided so the evidence is linked to the	e Teacher Standards and Career Stage Expectation
(Please state evidence)	
Declaration:	
I confirm that at the date of this request for assessment to a submit appraisal planning and review statements covering evidence to meet the school's criteria.	
Applicant's signature Da	ate
Line Manager's Signature	_ Date

APPENDIX 5 (continued)

UPPER PAY RANGE PROGRESSION CRITERIA

(1) Professional attributes

1.1 Contribute significantly, where appropriate, to implementing workplace policies and practice and to promoting collective responsibility for their implementation.

(2) Professional knowledge and understanding

- 2.1 Have an extensive knowledge and understanding of how to use and adapt a range of teaching, learning and behaviour management strategies, including how to personalise learning to provide opportunities for all learners to achieve their potential.
- 2.2 Have an extensive knowledge and well-informed understanding of the assessment requirements and arrangements for the subjects/curriculum areas they teach, including those related to public examinations and qualifications.
- 2.3 Have up-to-date knowledge and understanding of the different types of qualifications and specifications and their suitability for meeting learners' needs.
- 2.4 Have a more developed knowledge and understanding of their subjects/curriculum areas and related pedagogy including how learning progresses within them.
- 2.5 Have sufficient depth of knowledge and experience to be able to give advice on the development and wellbeing of children and young people.

(3) Professional skills

- 3.1 Be flexible, creative and adept at designing learning sequences within lessons and across lessons that are effective and consistently well-matched to learning objectives and the needs of learners and which integrate recent developments, including those relating to subject/curriculum knowledge.
- Have teaching skills which lead to learners achieving well relative to their prior attainment, making progress as good as, or better than, similar learners nationally.
- 3.3 Promote collaboration and work effectively as a team member.
- 3.4 Contribute to the professional development of colleagues through coaching and mentoring, demonstrating effective practice, and providing advice and feedback.

Year B is the current academic year

Annual Appraisial meeting to review performance over the previous academic year (A) and set new objectives for the forthcoming

September.

academic year (B)

Appraisal meeting is normally held in July or

If the teacher wishes to express an interest in progressing through UPS, at the end of Academic year B they should raise this at the annual apprasial meeting., where the review of peformance of year A & setting of new objectives for Year B takes place

The pay panel receives recommendations from the Headteacher (in

October) for the academic

year B. This includes the

application for UPS

Application to be considered for UPS with Evidence is submitted by the end of July in Academic year B

The appraiser discusses the support and evidence required for the application and how the school will support the teacher to gain the experience and evidence over the academic year (B)

During 1:1 meetings the appraiser will discuss with the teacher, where they are with performance as well as the support for UPS

APPENDIX 7

PAY APPEALS PROCEDURE

The Brighter Futures Learning Partnership Trust Board is committed to ensuring that appeals against pay decisions meet the requirements of the dispute resolution provisions of employment law.

The process set out below is consistent with the dispute resolution provisions of employment law and will be adopted by the Trust as the means by which appeals against pay decisions are considered.

Teachers may seek a review of any determination in relation to their pay or any other decision taken by the Trust (or a committee or individual acting with delegated authority) that affects their pay. In the Brighter Futures Learning Partnership Trust, Headteachers/Principals will make pay recommendations to the CEO who will moderate all pay decisions. The Remuneration Committee will review all pay progression and ensure it is evidence-based, fair and transparent in line with this Pay Policy.

The following list, which is not exhaustive, includes the usual reasons for seeking a review of a pay determination:

That the person or committee by whom the decision was made:

- a) incorrectly applied any provision of the STPCD;
- b) failed to have proper regard for statutory guidance;
- c) failed to take proper account of relevant evidence;
- d) took account of irrelevant or inaccurate evidence;
- e) was biased; or
- f) otherwise unlawfully discriminated against the teacher.

The order of proceedings is as follows:

The teacher receives written confirmation of the pay determination and where applicable the basis on which the decision was made.

If the teacher is not satisfied, they should seek to resolve this by discussing the matter informally with the Headteacher/Principal to see if this can be resolved informally.

Where this is not possible, or where the teacher continues to be dissatisfied, they may follow a formal appeal process. A written appeal must be lodged within ten working days of the decision of the outcome of the Remuneration Committee

The teacher should set down in writing the grounds for questioning the pay decision and send it to the Headteacher/Principal or CEO who made the determination

The Appeals Committee will arrange a date for an appeal hearing, within ten working days of receipt of the written appeal, to consider the appeal and give the teacher an opportunity to make representations in person.

Any appeal should be heard by a panel of three Trustees who were not involved in the original determination, normally within 20 working days of the receipt of the written appeal notification.

The teacher will be given the opportunity to make representations in person. The decision of the appeal panel will be given in writing, and where the appeal is rejected will include a note of the evidence considered and the reasons for the decision.

For any formal meeting the teacher is entitled to be accompanied by a colleague or union representative. Each step and action of this process must be taken without unreasonable delay. The timing and location of formal meetings must be reasonable. Formal meetings must allow both parties to explain their cases.

The procedure for the conduct of formal meetings shall be as follows.

Introductions

Chair introduces everyone and what their role is:

- self as Chair
- other panel member(s) (if applicable)
- employee
- employee representative
- any witnesses for the employee side
- management representative who will state the management case
- any witnesses for the management side
- person who will clerk the meeting
- HR manager to give advice to the panel

Goes over the order of the hearing:

- Employee will state their case
- Chair asks questions of the employee/employee representative
- Chair invites panel (if applicable) to ask questions
- Management will state their case (this may be the chair of the pay committee and (or) the Headteacher/Principal)
- Chair asks questions of the management
- Chair invites panel (if applicable) to ask questions
- Appellant to sum up
- Manager to sum up
- Chair to adjourn hearing to deliberate

Communication of decision

Employee is notified of decision

Decision and reason for the decision confirmed in writing, within 10 working days.

	APPENDIX 8	3 - PAY RECOMMENDAT	ION 2025-2026						
Please complete the Head	teacher/Princ	cipal Section for the mee	ting with the CEO	and Link Pay	Governor(s)				
School/UTC:									
		Headteacher's/Principal's Pay Recommendation Please mark with an 'X' the corresponding recommendation for each teacher							
TEACHERS (M1 -M6)	Current Points	Current Points Standards not met (no pay award) Consistently Good (1.0 point) Current Point No progression as top of scale Current Point Recommended Poir							
A.									
В.									
C.									
D.									
Please add more rows if required									

APPLICATIONS FOR UPPER PAY RANGE

		Headteacher's/Principal's Pay Recommendation Please mark with an 'X' the corresponding recommendation for each teacher								
TEACHERS (UPS1)	Current Point	Standards for Upper met Upper not met								
А										
В										
С										
D										
Please add more rows if required										

TEACHERS UPPER PAY RANGE

		Headteacher's/Principal's Pay Recommendation Please mark with an 'X' the corresponding recommendation for each teacher								
TEACHERS (UPS1-UPS5)	Current Points	Standards not met (no pay award)	Consistently Good (1.0 point)	Current Point	No progression as top of scale	Recommended Point				
Α.										
В.										
C.										
D.										
Please add more rows if required										

LEAD PRACTITIONER PAY RANGE

		Headteacher's/Principal's Pay Recommendation Please mark with an 'X' the corresponding recommendation for each teacher								
TEACHERS (LEAD PRACTITIONER SCALE)	Current Points	Standards not met (no pay award)	Consistently Good (1.0 point)	Current Point	No progression as top of scale	Recommended Point				
A.										
В.										
C.										
D.										
Please add more rows if required										

LEADERSHIP PAY RANGE

LEADERSHII TATRANGE		Headteacher's/Principal's Pay Recommendation Please mark with an 'X' the corresponding recommendation for each teacher								
TEACHERS (LEADERSHIP SCALE)	Current Points	Consistently Good Of scale rent Points Standards not met (no pay award) (1.0 point) Current Point Recommended Po								
A.										
В.										
C.										
D.										
Please add more rows if required										

The	• Chair	of the	Local	Governi	ng Boar	d mode	rated th	he abov	e decisio	ns on	(add	date)) -

Signature	
-----------	--